
Page 1 of 3 

 

 City Council Meeting and Workshop 

February 3, 2014 

Agenda 
                                    
 
 
                                                                             
5:30 P.M.  Workshop  

A. Public Services – Follow up on Storm Maintenance – Denis D’Auteuil and Dan Goyette (1 hour). 

B. Goal Setting Session Update – Clint Deschene (30 minutes). 

 

7:00 P.M.  City Council Meeting 

 

Pledge of Allegiance   

I. Consent Items – All items listed with an asterisk (*) are considered as routine and will be approved in one motion.   

There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Councilor or citizen so requests.  If requested, the item 

will be removed from the consent agenda and considered in the order it appears on the agenda.   

 

II.    Minutes   

 January 21, 2014 Regular Council Meeting 
 

III.   Reports  

Mayor’s Report  
 

City Manager’s Report  

 Sale of the Chilling System at Ingersoll Arena 

 Joint School and City Budget calendar 
 

 Committee Reports 

 Transportation 

o Androscoggin Transportation Resource Center – Mayor LaBonte 

o Lewiston Auburn Transit – Councilor Gerry 

o Airport, Railroad – Councilor Hayes 

o Bike-Ped Committee  

 Housing 

o Community Development Block Grant, Neighborhood Stabilization Program, 

Auburn Housing Authority – Councilor Gerry 

 Economic Development 

o L-A Economic Growth Council, Auburn Business Development Corporation  

 Education 

o Auburn School Committee – Councilor LaFontaine 

o Auburn Public Library – Councilor LaFontaine 

o Great Falls TV – Councilor Young  

 Environmental Services 

o Auburn Water District, Auburn Sewerage District – Councilor Crowley 

o Mid-Maine Waste Action Corp. – Councilor Walker 

 Recreation 

o Recreation and Special Events Advisory Board – Councilor Crowley 

 Public Safety 

o LA 911 – Councilor Walker 

 



Au b u r n  C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g  &  W o r k s h o p  
 February 3, 2014 

 

Page 2 of 3 

 

             City Councilors’ Reports               

IV.    Communications, Presentations and Recognitions  

 

V.     Open Session – Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly related to 

                                              City business which is not on this agenda.  Time limit for open sessions, by ordinance, is 45 minutes.    

 

VI.    Unfinished Business - None 

 

VII.     New Business 

 

1. Public Hearing 

Public hearing on Solid Waste and Recycling contracts.  

 

This item is for public input only and action will occur during the budget 

process. 

 

2. Order 11-02032014  

Naming the ball field at Pettengill Park. Public hearing. 

 

3. Ordinance 01-02032014  
Amending an Ordinance – Chapter 2, Article VI, Division 2, Section 2-514). 

 

4. Resolve 01-02032014  
Supporting the Rail to Trail Project. 

 

5. Resolve 02-02032014  
Opposing the State Revenue Sharing Reduction. 

 

6. Order 12-02032014  
Authorizing the City Manager to reinstate funding ($2,205 to be taken from the 

Fund Balance) to support five polling places instead of one for the June 10, 2014 

election. 

 

VIII. Executive Session 

 

 Discussion regarding a personnel matter, pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(A). 

 Discussion regarding labor negotiations (MAP Patrol), pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(D).  

 

IX.  Open Session - Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly related to 

                                             City business which is not on this agenda. 

 

X. Adjournment 

 
Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered in executive 

session.  Executive sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are required to be kept confidential 

until they become a matter of public discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor must make a motion in public.  The motion 

must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of the Council must vote to go into executive session.  An executive session is not required to be 

scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is known at the time that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The 



Au b u r n  C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g  &  W o r k s h o p  
 February 3, 2014 

 

Page 3 of 3 

 

only topics which may be discussed in executive session are those that fall within one of the categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 

405(6).  Those applicable to municipal government are: 

 

A. Discussion or consideration of the employment, appointment, assignment, duties, promotion, demotion, compensation, evaluation, 

disciplining, resignation or dismissal of an individual or group of public officials, appointees or employees of the body or agency or the 

investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against a person or persons subject to the following conditions:  

(1) An executive session may be held only if public discussion could be reasonably expected to cause damage to the individual's reputation 

or the individual's right to privacy would be violated; 

(2) Any person charged or investigated must be permitted to be present at an executive session if that person so desires; 

(3) Any person charged or investigated may request in writing that the investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against that 

person be conducted in open session. A request, if made to the agency, must be honored; and  

(4) Any person bringing charges, complaints or allegations of misconduct against the individual under discussion must be permitted to be 

present. 

This paragraph does not apply to discussion of a budget or budget proposal;  

 

B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension or expulsion of a public school student or a student at a private school, the 

cost of whose education is paid from public funds, as long as:  

(1) The student and legal counsel and, if the student is a minor, the student's parents or legal guardians are permitted to be present at an 

executive session if the student, parents or guardians so desire;  

 

C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to real property or 

interests therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature disclosures of the information would 

prejudice the competitive or bargaining position of the body or agency;  

 

D. Discussion of labor contracts and proposals and meetings between a public agency and its negotiators. The parties must be named 

before the body or agency may go into executive session. Negotiations between the representatives of a public employer and public employees 

may be open to the public if both parties agree to conduct negotiations in open sessions;  

 

E. Consultations between a body or agency and its attorney concerning the legal rights and duties of the body or agency, pending or 

contemplated litigation, settlement offers and matters where the duties of the public body's or agency's counsel to the attorney's client pursuant to 

the code of professional responsibility clearly conflict with this subchapter or where premature general public knowledge would clearly place the 

State, municipality or other public agency or person at a substantial disadvantage;  

 

F. Discussions of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the general public to 

those records is prohibited by statute; 

 

G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or employment 

purposes; consultation between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that body or agency regarding the content 

of an examination; and review of examinations with the person examined; and  

 

H. Consultations between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 30-A, section 

4452, subsection 1, paragraph C in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when the consultation relates to that 

pending enforcement matter.  



City Council 

Workshop Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject: Public Services Winter Operations Update 

 

Information: Public Services staff will provide a post storm review on the January 11, 2014 ice storm, an 

overview of Winter Operations and an update on the state of the current Public Services budget.   

 

 

Financial: N/A      

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Update 
 

 

Previous Meetings and History: N/A    

 

 

 

Attachments:  None 

 

 

Council Workshop Date:  February 3, 2014 Item  A 

Author:   Denis D'Auteuil, Public Services Director 



City Council 

Workshop Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject: Goal Setting Session Update 

 

Information: Since the Goal Setting Meeting I have been working with staff to integrate the Council Goal 

Setting Notes with the Initiatives. 

 

What I have devised is a document that needs some refinement but puts these into a format of (Theme, Goal, 

Strategy, and Initiative).  Staff is also working on inputting this into a tracking a presentation format.  This 

should work very well almost as a Council Project Management System.   

 

If we can agree that this format works I would like to have the discretion to fill in some of the missing pieces 

and finalize this for a future presentation.  The Council would also be encouraged to suggest language for the 

missing areas. 

 

Also, the timeframes are subject to change but are my best estimates of workload.  Please do not confuse these 

with Council workshop timelines.  I will propose those later.   

 

Then this would become the core of policy updates (I would recommend quarterly), new initiatives, annual goal 

setting, and the City Manager work plan. 

 

 

Financial: N/A 

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Update and discussion 

 

Previous Meetings and History: January 2, 2014 Workshop 

 

 

Attachments:  

Council Workshop Date:  February 3, 2014 Item  B 

Author:   Clint Deschene, City Manager 



City of Auburn 
2014 Council Goals & Staff Initiatives  

 

Page 1 of 19 

 

 
Theme #1:  Economic Development  
Goal:  Increase the funds coming into the community through a balanced program of business and residential development. 
 

 Objective #1:  Strengthen downtown Auburn and New Auburn) with a mix of retail and residential assets; attract visitors with 
special events; etc. (See comprehensive plan) 

 

Objective #1 Initiatives 

Description Priority Time Frame Staff Assignment 

Minot Ave and Washington Street/Downtown 
Gateway Improvement (EDA) 

1 10 years 
City Planner and 

Economic Development Director 

CDBG Consolidated Plan update and committee 
oversight 

1 18 months CDBG Director 

ABDC business park lot sales and future 
relationship w/ City of Auburn  

1 5 years 
Economic Development Director, ABDC and 

LAEGC 

Downtown development program recommendation 
and implementation 

1 3 years Economic Development Director 

Property Maintenance Ordinance/Dangerous 
Buildings 

1 2+ years City Planner 

New Auburn Greenway Development 2 6 years 
City Planner and 
CDBG Director 

Recreation and Special Events Committee 
formalizing changes 

2 6-12 months 
Public Services Director, Recreation 

Manager, Chief of Police and City Clerk 

New Auburn Transportation/Land Use plan 
adoption and implementation 

2 5-15 years 
Economic Development Director, City 

Engineer, CDBG Director, and City Planner 

 
o Initiative Status: 

 Minot Ave and Washington Street/Downtown Gateway Improvement (EDA):  Begin by developing a scope for 
review by Housing and Urban Development (HUD) to develop a report of the currently available commuters in the 
Auburn Greater Downtown to commute to other locations.  (IE. Portland or even BIW).  With this data develop a 



2014 Council Goals & Staff Initiatives cont.  

Updated January 27, 2014 

Page 2 of 19 

 

scope and transportation project to redefine the Gateway of Auburn on Minot and Washington Avenue and how 
these entry points allow access to and through the downtown. 
 

 CDBG Consolidated Plan update and committee oversight:  Rework the Citizen Action Committee (CAC) of the 
CDBG five year plan development.  Use this new process to generate a CDBG budget that is compliant with 
federal laws but works cohesively in an economic development strategy to grow the downtown. 

 

 ABDC business park lot sales and future relationship w/ City of Auburn:  Working with ABDC and in some 
regards connecting this initiative with the LAEGC restructuring develop a plan for Auburn and ABDC to market, 
promote, and plan the best way to develop the new park. 

 

 Downtown Development Program recommendation and implementation:  Build an economic development 
program to focus on the growth of the downtown.  This is a combination of Downtown (form-based code), small 
business visitation, and integration of the CDBG program. 

 

 Property Maintenance Ordinance/Dangerous Buildings:  Implement proper property maintenance by implementing 
processes that focus on dangerous buildings. 

 

 New Auburn Greenway Development:  Through grants, city funding, and funds yet to be identified, develops a 
corridor to connect people to the “core” of New Auburn.  One major component is the expansion of Little Andy 
Park.  This is on-going and is in need of additional funding. 

 

 Recreation and Special Events Committee formalizing changes:  Allow this new committee to meet and expand on 
the new structure to focus on recreation and special events services, separate of facilities or parks.  As this evolves, 
present a new set of ordinances and policies for Council approval.  

 

 New Auburn Transportation/Land Use Plan adoption and implementation:  The committee report of the land use 
plan and transportation system recommended will be implemented by staff in a methodical process.  This 
implementation must then be supported in access to funding to implement the plan. 

 
 

 



2014 Council Goals & Staff Initiatives cont.  

Updated January 27, 2014 

Page 3 of 19 

 

 Objective #2:  Strengthen infrastructure to retain and attract industrial development in a targeted area. (See comprehensive plan) 
 

Objective #2 Initiatives 

Description Priority Time Frame Staff Assignment 

LAEGC Restructuring/Contract Development 1 3-6 months 
Economic Development Director and CDBG 

Director 

 
o Initiative Status:   

 LAEGC Restructuring/Contract Development:  As of January 1, 2014 work with a consultant and Lewiston to 
develop a contract for LAEGC to define the scope of work that meets the many needs of the region. 

 

 Objective #3:  Ensure a qualified local workforce through strong educational programs that promote skill development and 
lifelong learning.  (See also; comp. plan; education goals)   

 

Objective #3 Initiatives 

Description Priority Time Frame Staff Assignment 

School Committee Strategic Planning 1 ongoing School Department 

Future of High School, Education/EL Facilities 2 3 years City Manager and School Department 

 
o Initiative Status:   

 School Committee Strategic Planning:  School has started. 

 

 Future of High School, Education/EL Facilities: Discussions still occurring at staff level.  Clear direction is still to 
come.  Overall Auburn is waiting for funding from State which appears to be within the next 2 to 5 years.  

 
 
 
 

 



2014 Council Goals & Staff Initiatives cont.  

Updated January 27, 2014 

Page 4 of 19 

 

 Objective #4:  Increase assessed valuations to strengthen the overall tax base.  
 

  

Objective #4 Initiatives 

Description Priority Time Frame Staff Assignment 

Comprehensive Plan Implementation 1 Ongoing City Planner and Assistant City Manager 

Minot Ave and Washington Street/Downtown 
Gateway Improvement (EDA) 

1 10 years 
City Planner and Economic Development 

Director  

CDBG Consolidated Plan update and committee 
oversight 

1 18 months CDBG Director 

Downtown Development Program recommendation 
and implementation 

1 3 years Economic Development Director 

Property Maintenance Ordinance/Dangerous 
Buildings 

1 2+ years City Planner 

New Auburn Greenway Development 2 6 years 
City Planner and 
CDBG Director 

New Auburn Transportation/Land Use Plan 
adoption and implementation 

2 5-15 years 
Economic Development Director, City 

Engineer, CDBG Director and City Planner 

Athletic Field Assessment Phase I Completion and 
Review 

2 3-6 months 
Public Service Director, City Planner and 

Recreation Committee 

Athletic Field Assessment Phase II Completion and 
Review 

2 6-18 months 
Public Service Director, City Planner and 

Recreation Committee 

East Auburn Projects: 2 24 months Assistant City Manager 

Outlet Beach Planning  6 months CDBG 

Route 4 “Round About” Design  12 months City Engineer and ATRC  

MDOT Land widening to Lake Shore Drive  9 months City Engineer and ATRC 

Storm Water runoff with Water District  18 months 
City Planner, City Engineer, Auburn Water 

District  

Boat Launch on Androscoggin (Brookfield)  24 months City Planner  

 



2014 Council Goals & Staff Initiatives cont.  

Updated January 27, 2014 

Page 5 of 19 

 

o Initiative Status:   

 Comprehensive Plan Implementation:  Taking the steps or policies of the comprehensive plan and creating a step 
by step implementation process that can be used to report on progress and items to be completed.  Staff updates 
progress annually. 
 

 Minot Ave and Washington Street/Downtown Gateway Improvement (EDA):  Begin by developing a scope for 
review by Housing and Urban Development (HUD) to develop a report of the currently available commuters in the 
Auburn Greater Downtown to commute to other locations.  (IE. Portland or even BIW).  With this data develop a 
scope and transportation project to redefine the Gateway of Auburn on Minot and Washington Avenue and how 
these entry points allow access to and through the downtown. 

 

 CDBG consolidated plan update and committee oversight:  Rework the Citizen Action Committee (CAC) of the 
CDBG five year plan development.  Use this new process to generate a CDBG budget that is compliant with 
federal laws but works cohesively in an economic development strategy to grow the downtown. 

 

 Downtown Development Program recommendation and implementation:  Build an economic development 
program to focus on the growth of the downtown.  This is a combination of Downtown (form-based code), small 
business visitation, and integration of the CDBG program. 

 

 Property Maintenance Ordinance/Dangerous Building:  Implement proper property maintenance by implementing 
processes that focus on dangerous buildings. 

 

 New Auburn Greenway Development:  Through grants, city funding, and funds yet to be identified, develops a 
corridor to connect people to the “core” of New Auburn.  One major component is the expansion of Little Andy 
Park.  This is on-going and is in need of additional funding. 

 

 New Auburn Transportation/Land Use Plan adoption and implementation:  The committee report of the land use 
plan and transportation system recommended will be implemented by staff in a methodical process.  This 
implementation must then be supported in access to funding to implement the plan. 

 
 



2014 Council Goals & Staff Initiatives cont.  

Updated January 27, 2014 

Page 6 of 19 

 

 Athletic Field Assessment Phase I Completion and Review:  Present a phase one field assessment that focuses on 
outdoor fields and basketball primarily (excluding parks or open space), to begin the process of identifying stake 
holders and overall City needs. 

 

 Athletic Field Assessment Phase II Completion and Review:  Expand on phase one to develop implementation 
options of where and how to invest in outdoor fields and basketball.  Concepts to be considered are fixing the 
current assets, developing or expanding on existing assets and sites, or relocating to a larger concentrated site. 

 

 East Auburn Projects:  The following five projects should be coordinated in a development process so that the 
integration of each considered in concert with the other items. 

 

 Outlet Beach Planning:  With the assistance of a consultant develop a conceptual plan and design for the 
outlet beach and create a project to implement.  Also meet with residents to consider needs and 
recommendations.  New design should be in relation to the new “Round About” being designed. 
 

 Route 4 “Round About” Design:  Design a new round about that connects existing assets (Lake Auburn 
turnout and Outlet Beach) to the transportation system. 
  

 MDOT Land widening to Lake Shore Drive: Implement the widening of Lake Shore drive to create a safer 
design for traffic.  Make sure this design connects with the roundabout and storm water projects efficiently. 
 

 Storm Water runoff with Water District:  Work to address a storm water runoff system to protect the Lake 
but also meet the priorities of transportation and recreational assets in the area. 
 

 Boat Launch on Androscoggin (Brookfield): Continue to work with Brookfield to implement river access on 
the Androscoggin consistent with the recommendation of the comprehensive plan.  View this project in 
conjunction with new transportation projects and outlet beach project. 

 

 Objective #5:  Provide infrastructure* and targeted attention for the Auburn Mall area to leverage the potential impact of the 

Norway Savings Arena.  *Infrastructure includes both policy and regulatory development and physical plant. 

  



2014 Council Goals & Staff Initiatives cont.  

Updated January 27, 2014 

Page 7 of 19 

 

Objective #5 Initiatives 

Description Priority Time Frame Staff Assignment 

Comprehensive Plan Implementation 1 Ongoing / 15+ years City Planner and Assistant City Manager 

Report on Norway Savings Bank Arena operational 
assessment and economic impact to Mall area 

5 
Ongoing, Start 7/1/14 

then annually in budget 
Arena Director and Economic Development 

Director 

 
o Initiative Status:   

 Comprehensive Plan Implementation:  Taking the steps or policies of the comprehensive plan and creating a step 
by step implementation process that can be used a report on progress and items to be completed.  Staff updates 
progress annually. 
 

 Report on Norway Savings Bank Arena operational assessment and economic impact to Mall area:  Annually 
present the impact of this investment on the mall area.  This is separate of budgets and annual operational costs and 
concentrates solely on the economic impact this facility has on Auburn and the region. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2014 Council Goals & Staff Initiatives cont.  

Updated January 27, 2014 

Page 8 of 19 

 

Theme #2:  Education 
Goal:  Work in partnership with the School Committee and School Department to achieve community goals including workforce 
development, expanded literacy rates, early childhood education, and other lifelong learning objectives. 
 

 Objective #1:  Strengthen the partnership between Council and the School Committee. 

 

Objective #1 Initiatives 

Description Priority Time Frame Staff Assignment 

School Committee Strategic Planning  1 Ongoing School Department  

Future of High School Education / EL Facilities 2 3 years City Manager and School Department 

Engage in shared conversations:  5 Ongoing City Manager and School Department 

Long Term:   Vision and Goals 5 Ongoing City Manager and School Department 

Short Term:  Budget Discussions and 
Setting the Referendum Date 

5 Ongoing City Manager and School Department 

State-imposed Constraints 5 Ongoing City Manager and School Department 

21st Century Educational Models  5 Ongoing City Manager and School Department 

 
o Initiative Status:   

 School Committee Strategic Planning:  School has started. 

 Future of High School Education/EL Facilities:  Discussions still occurring at staff level.  Clear direction is still to 
come.  Overall Auburn is waiting for funding from State which appears to be within the next 2 to 5 years 

 Engage in Shared Conversations: 

 Long Term:  Vision and Goals: 

 Short Term:  Budget Discussions and Setting the Referendum Date: 

 State-imposed Constraints:   

 21st Century Educational Models:   
 

 Objective #2:  Leverage existing resources and networks  



2014 Council Goals & Staff Initiatives cont.  

Updated January 27, 2014 

Page 9 of 19 

 

 

Objective #2 Initiatives 

Description Priority Time Frame Staff Assignment 

- - - - 

    

 
o Initiative Status:   

  

 

 Objective #3:   

 

Objective #3 Initiatives 

Description Priority Time Frame Staff Assignment 

Explore the role of costs of neighborhood schools 
as community centers and anchors. 

- - - 

 
o Initiative Status:   

  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2014 Council Goals & Staff Initiatives cont.  

Updated January 27, 2014 

Page 10 of 19 

 

Theme #3:  Strong Neighborhoods 
Goal:  Ensure that neighborhoods are safe, attractive, and cohesive.  
 

 Objective #1:   
o Promote the ongoing development of a mix of quality housing options.   
o Improve housing stock in areas with outdated structures 
o Encourage stronger resident participation that builds positive neighborhood feelings 

 

Objective #1 Initiatives 

Description Priority Time Frame Staff Assignment 

Comprehensive Plan Implementation  1 Ongoing / 15+ years Assistant City Manager and City Planner 

LAEGC Restructuring/contract development 1 3-6+ months 
City Manager and Economic Development 

Director  

Minot Ave. and Washington Street/Downtown 
Gateway Improvement (EDA)  

1 10 years 
City Planner, Economic Development 

Director 

CDBG Consolidated Plan update and committee 
oversight 

1 18 months CDBG Director 

Downtown Development Program recommendation 
and implementation 

1 3 years Economic Development Director 

Property Maintenance Ordinance/Dangerous 
Building  

1 2+ years City Planner 

Future of MMWAC  1 2 years MMWAC Director and Public Services Director 

New Auburn Greenway Development  2 6 years City Planner and CDBG Director 

New Auburn Transportation/land use plan 
adoption and implementation 

2 5-15 years 
Economic Development Director, City 

Engineer, CDBG Director and City Planner 

Athletic Field Assessment Phase I Completion and 
Review 

2 3-6 months 
Public Services Director, City Planner and 

Recreation Committee 

Athletic Field Assessment Phase II Review and 
Recommendation Implementation 

2 6-18 months 
Public Services Director, City Planner and 

Recreation Committee 



2014 Council Goals & Staff Initiatives cont.  

Updated January 27, 2014 

Page 11 of 19 

 

East Auburn Projects: 2 24 months Assistant City Manager 

Outlet Beach Planning  6 months CDBG 

Route 4 “Round About” Design  12 months City Engineer and ATRC  

MDOT Land widening to Lake Shore Drive  9 months City Engineer and ATRC 

Storm Water runoff with Water District  18 months 
City Planner, City Engineer, Auburn Water 

District  

Boat Launch on Androscoggin (Brookfield)  24 months City Planner  

Ingersoll Arena Plan and recommendations for 
adoption 

3 6 months 
Public Services Director, City Planner and 

Recreation Committee 

Joint Land Use Planning/Mr. Apatite  4 2 years City Planner 

Parks and Conversation Commission Formation 4 2+ years Public Services Director and LACFB 

Community Forest Management Planning is follow-
up to moratorium 

4 6 months 
Public Services Director, School Department 

and LACFB 

 
 

o Initiative Status:   

 Comprehensive Plan Implementation: Taking the steps or policies of the comprehensive plan and creating a step by 
step implementation process that can be used a report on progress and items to be completed.  Staff updates 
progress annually. 
 

 LAEGC Restructuring/contract development:  As of January 1, 2014 work with a consultant and Lewiston to 
develop a contract for LAEGC to define the scope of work that meets the many needs of the region.   
 

 Minot Ave. and Washington Street/Downtown Gateway Improvement (EDA):  Begin by developing a scope for 
review by Housing and Urban Development (HUD) to develop a report of the currently available commuters in the 
Auburn Greater Downtown to commute to other locations.  (IE. Portland or even BIW).  With this data develop a 
scope and transportation project to redefine the Gateway of Auburn on Minot and Washington Avenue and how 
these entry points allow access to and through the downtown. 

 



2014 Council Goals & Staff Initiatives cont.  

Updated January 27, 2014 

Page 12 of 19 

 

 CDBG Consolidated Plan update and committee oversight:  Rework the Citizen Action Committee (CAC) of the 
CDBG five year plan development.  Use this new process to generate a CDBG budget that is compliant with 
federal laws but works cohesively in an economic development strategy to grow the downtown. 

 

 Downtown development program recommendation and implementation:  Build an economic development program 
to focus on the growth of the downtown.  This is a combination of Downtown (Form based code), small business 
visitation, and integration of the CDBG program. 
 

 Property Maintenance Ordinance/Dangerous Building:  Implement proper property maintenance by implementing 
processes that focus on dangerous buildings. 
 

 Future of MMWAC:  The end of the negotiated energy contracts, end of debt service, and changes in recycling will 
require the City to investigate the proper goals for the continued use and investment in MMWAC.  Long-term 
priorities and costs must be evaluated to assure the best return in our investment. 
 

 New Auburn Greenway Development:  Through grants, city funding, and funds yet to be identified develop a 
corridor to connect people to the “core” of New Auburn.  One major component is the expansion of Little Andy 
Park.  This is on-going and is in need of additional funding. 
 

 New Auburn Transportation/land use plan adoption and implementation:  The committee report of the land use 
plan and transportation system recommended will be implemented by staff in a methodical process.  This 
implementation must then be supported in access to funding to implement the plan. 
 

 Athletic Field Assessment Phase I Completion and Review:  Present a phase one field assessment that focuses on 
outdoor fields and basketball primarily (excluding parks or open space), to begin the process of identifying stake 
holders and overall City needs. 
 

 Athletic Field Assessment Phase II Review and Recommendation Implementation:  Expand on phase one to 
develop implementation options of where and how to invest in outdoor fields and basketball.  Concepts to be 
considered are fixing the current assets, developing or expanding on existing assets and sites, or relocating to a 
larger concentrated site. 
 



2014 Council Goals & Staff Initiatives cont.  

Updated January 27, 2014 

Page 13 of 19 

 

 East Auburn Projects:  The following five projects should be coordinated in a development process so that the 
integration of each considered in concert with the other items. 
 

 Outlet Beach Planning:  With the assistance of a consultant develop a conceptual plan and design for the 
outlet beach and create a project to implement.  Also meet with residents to consider needs and 
recommendations.  New design should be in relation to the new “Round About” being designed. 
 

 Route 4 “Round About” Design:  Design a new round about that connects existing assets (Lake Auburn 
turnout and Outlet Beach) to the transportation system. 
 

 MDOT Land widening to Lake Shore Drive:  Implement the widening of Lake Shore drive to create a safer 
design for traffic.  Make sure this design connects with the roundabout and storm water projects efficiently. 
 

 Storm Water runoff with Water District:  Work to address a storm water runoff system to protect the Lake 
but also meet the priorities of transportation and recreational assets in the area. 
 

 Boat Launch on Androscoggin (Brookfield):  Continue to work with Brookfield to implement river access 
on the Androscoggin consistent with the recommendation of the comprehensive plan.  View this project in 
conjunction with new transportation projects and outlet beach project. 

 

 Ingersoll Arena plan and recommendations for adoption:  During the budget staff is to present research and costs 
to implement a variety of potential new uses for Ingersoll and a recommended use. 
 

 Joint Land Use Planning/Mr. Apatite:  The delayed process by the military will continue to negotiate and execute an 
agreement that satisfies the City and Federal Government.  Many options will be considered and staff will work 
closely with the committee to develop a plan that best meets the needs of Auburn. 
 

 Parks and Conversation Commission Formation:  Through the public services division, work with existing 
committees, primarily Lewiston Auburn Community Forest Board (LACFB) to develop a structure that focuses the 
land based needs of the City into one comprehensive committee.  Aspects to deal with beyond the forest board may 
include bike/pedestrian (complete streets), cemeteries, busing, etc. 
 



2014 Council Goals & Staff Initiatives cont.  

Updated January 27, 2014 

Page 14 of 19 

 

 Community Forest Management Planning is follow-up to moratorium:  Separate of Parks and Conversation 
Commission staff will work the school department and LACFB to develop a tree harvesting process that is 
transparent and enlists a broad view of tree harvesting that incorporates connecting and preserving public lands. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2014 Council Goals & Staff Initiatives cont.  

Updated January 27, 2014 

Page 15 of 19 

 

Theme #4:  Communication & Resident Engagement 
Goal:   
 

 Objective #1:   
o Make people more comfortable coming to Auburn Hall 
o On a periodic and regular basis, take City Hall to the neighborhoods 
o Look at how the committee structure might strengthen resident participation 
o Increase communications with residents 

 

Objective #1 Initiatives 

Description Priority Time Frame Staff Assignment 

Plan a monthly informal meeting setting for 
residents 

- - - 

Plan a monthly listening workshop of the Council    

Provide ongoing community conversations on 
focused topics 

- - - 

Conduct a workshop on current organization of 36 
committees 

- - - 

Email blasts - - - 

Twitter - - - 

Facebook - - - 

 
o Initiative Status:   

 Plan a monthly informal meeting setting for residents: 
 

 Plan a monthly listening workshop of the Council: 
 

 Provide ongoing community conversations on focused topics: 



2014 Council Goals & Staff Initiatives cont.  

Updated January 27, 2014 

Page 16 of 19 

 

 Conduct a workshop on current organization of 36 committees: 
 

 Email blasts: 
 

 Twitter: 
 

 Facebook:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2014 Council Goals & Staff Initiatives cont.  

Updated January 27, 2014 

Page 17 of 19 

 

Theme #5:  Other 
Goal:   
 

 Objective #1:   
 

 

Objective #1 Initiatives 

Description Priority Time Frame Staff Assignment 

EMS Transport/United Ambulance Contract  1 6 months Fire Chief 

Fire Union Contract Negotiations 1 3 months 
Fire Chief, Human Resources Director, City 

Manager 

Police Union Contract Negotiations 1 3 months 
Chief of Police, Human Resources Director, 

Assistant City Manager 

Public Works Union Contract Negotiations 1 12-18 months 
Public Services Director, Human Resources 

Director, City Manager 

Organizational Assessment of LATC and Auburn 
Transit Needs for the Future 

1 6 months – 2 years Assistant City Manager 

Organizational Assessment of ATRC and use of 
Federal Funds to meet Auburn’s 
transportation/economic needs 

1 6-18 months 
Assistant City Manager, City Manager, ATRC 

Committee, AVCOG/ATRC Staff 

Creation of a City Council Finance Committee 2 3 months Finance Director 

911 Dispatch/County dispatch issue resolution 3 4 years City Manager 

Implement Performance components per Charter 4 5 years City Manager and Finance Director 

Canal Legal Matter 4 
6-8 months, variable 

due to Lewiston 
City Manager, Legal 

City Consolidation Charter Commission 4 2-3 years City Clerk (TBD) 

Downtown passenger rail policies and 
implementation strategies 

4 2 years 
City Planner, Economic Development 

Director, Assistant City Manager 



2014 Council Goals & Staff Initiatives cont.  

Updated January 27, 2014 

Page 18 of 19 

 

Completion of the new CIP and Budget 5 Annual  City Manager and Finance Director 

Matrix Study review and implementation 
prioritization of policies 

2&3 2-5 years Fire Chief  

 

 
o Initiative Status:   

 EMS Transport/United Ambulance contract: Working with United to confirm their position and then update 
Council for them to adopt a direction. 
 

 Fire Union contract negotiations:  Complete 
 

 Police Union contract negotiations:  Patrol is still open, Command is complete 

 Public Works union contract negotiations:  Present to the City Council the current contract and possible options to 
use to negotiate the next contract.  As part of this presentation show the pros and cons of using an outside 
negotiator for the contract.  Primary focus should be the goals and objectives of the next contract. 
 

 Organizational assessment of LATC and Auburn transit needs for the future:  LATC has agreed to this process.  
Steps are pending 
 

 Organizational assessment of ATRC and use of Federal Funds to meet Auburn’s transportation/economic needs:  
ATRC members are still working with committee to begin this process. 
 

 Creation of a City Council Finance Committee:  Develop a committee structure for financial issues.  Overall intent 
is to have a more detailed discussion of the financial report in advance of presentation to the Council.  This 
committee could be in place within a few months. 
 

 911 Dispatch/County dispatch issue resolution:  Options with attorney.  Waiting for next steps to be agreed by 
both Lewiston and Auburn. 
 

 Implement Performance components per Charter:  Evolve the budget process to adhere to policy and performance 
measures.  This is a process that needs time to develop best practices at the Council level for goals and measures 



2014 Council Goals & Staff Initiatives cont.  

Updated January 27, 2014 

Page 19 of 19 

 

and current budget will be more compliant but full compliance will take a few years and is subject to Council 
agreement. 
 

 Canal Legal matter:  Waiting on a response from Lewiston to recent questions 
 

 City Consolidation Charter Commission:  Charter Commission to be elected in June. 
 

 Downtown passenger rail policies and implementation strategies:  City staff has presented the changes for our 
comprehensive plan.  When these changes are adopted staff will begin to coordinate more with partner agencies on 
changing their policies. 
 

 Completion of the CIP and Budget:  Annually develop a CIP and budget that conforms to schedules and hearings 
as required per charter 

 Matrix Study review and implementation, prioritization of policies:  Fire Department is preparing a written report of 
all steps taken, what remains, and financial impacts of those remaining. 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 









City of Auburn, Maine 
“Maine’s City of Opportunity” 

___________________________      ______ 
Office of the City Manager 

60 Court Street  Suite 243  Auburn, ME 04210 

(207) 333-6600 Voice  (207) 333-6601 Automated  (207) 333-6621 Fax 

www.auburnmaine.gov 
      

 

   
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

         

 

Date Day Time Meeting Place 

2014 

January 30 Thursday 6:00pm 
Refreshments 

7:00pm Meeting 
Start 

Joint City Council Meeting w/ Lewiston to Discuss Economic 
Development 

Auburn Council Chambers  

February 3 Monday 5:30pm & 7:00pm Council Workshop: 
 
Council Meeting: 

1.  Public Hearing – Ball Field Nominations 
 

Council Chambers 

February 5 Wednesday 5:30pm School Committee Workshop: 
1. School Funding 101 
2. Regular Instruction, Special Education, Other Instruction, 

Student and Staff Support 
 

Council Chambers  

TO:  Mayor and City Council  

FROM: Clint Deschene, City Manager 

DATE: January 29, 2014 

RE:  FY15 Budget Calendar – dates and topics are subject to change 



City  o f  Auburn  
    

 

Page 2 of 5 

Updated:  1-29-14 

 

February 10 Monday 5:30pm Joint Council Workshop – School and City: 
1. CIP Discussion 
2. Presentation of Draft Budget 
3. General Budget Discussion – overview of format, info, 

compliance w/ performance based budgeting 
 

Council Chambers 

February 12 Wednesday 5:30pm & 7:00pm School Committee Budget Workshop: 
1.  Further Review Items from 2/10 

 
Regular School Committee Meeting: 

 

Council Chambers 

February 17 Monday All Day Presidents Day Holiday N/A 

February 18 Tuesday 5:30pm & 7:00pm Council Workshop: 
 
Council Meeting: 

1. Executive Session:  PW Contract  
 

Council Chambers 

February 24  Monday 5:30pm Council Budget Workshop #1: 
1. Public Administration Budget Presentation (Assessing, Clerk, 

Finance, Health and Social Services, Human Resources, 
ICT)  

2. Planning and Development Budget Presentation 
3. City Manager, County Tax, Fringe Benefits, Legal, Mayor and 

Council, Worker’s Comp, Special Funds and Enterprise 
Funds Budget Presentations 
 

Council Chambers 

February 26 Wednesday 5:30pm School Committee Budget Workshop: 
1. System Administration and School Administration, 

Transportation and Buses, Facilities Maintenance, Debt 
Service, and Other Commitments 
 

Council Chambers 

March 3 Monday 5:30pm & 7:00pm Council Budget Workshop #2: 
1. Assessing Presents Valuation 
2. Public Safety Budget Presentations 

 
Council Meeting: 

Council Chambers 

March 5 Wednesday 5:30pm & 7:00pm School Committee Budget Workshop: 
1. Review Materials Shared on 2/26 – revenue 

Council Chambers  



City  o f  Auburn  
    

 

Page 3 of 5 

Updated:  1-29-14 

 

 
Regular School Committee Meeting: 

 

March 12 Wednesday 5:30pm School Committee Budget Workshop: 
1. Revenues and Adult Education 
2. Preparing budget for public hearing  

 

Council Chambers  

March 17 Monday 5:30pm & 7:00pm Council Budget Workshop #3: 
1. Curb Appeal Update 
2. CIP Budget Presentation 
3. Joint Services, Library and CDBG Budget Presentations 

 
Council Meeting: 
 

Council Chambers 

March 19 Wednesday 5:30pm & 7:00pm School Committee Budget Workshop (if necessary) 
 
Regular School Committee Meeting 

 

Council Chambers  

March 20 Thursday 5:30pm Joint School and City Budget Workshop Council Chambers 

March 24 Monday 5:30pm Council Budget Workshop #4: 
1. Public Services Budget Presentation (Public Works, 

Engineering, and Parks) 
2. Recreation Budget Presentation 
3. Property, Water, Sewer Budget Presentation 

 

Council Chambers  

March 26 Wednesday 7:00pm Special School Committee Budget Meeting 
1. Finalize budget before approval on April 2 

Council Chambers  

March 31 Monday 7:00pm TENTATIVE Joint Council Meeting w/ Lewiston: 
 

Auburn Council Chambers 

April 2 Wednesday 7:00pm School Committee Meeting 
1. Formal Budget Approval by the School Committee 

Council Chambers 

April 7 Monday 5:30pm & 7:00pm Council Budget Workshop #5: 
1. Review Proposed School Budget 

 
Council Meeting: 

Council Chambers 



City  o f  Auburn  
    

 

Page 4 of 5 

Updated:  1-29-14 

 

1. Council Approves CIP 
2. 1

st
 Bond Reading 

3. Possible Adoption of School Budget 
 

April 16 Wednesday 7:00pm Regular School Committee Meeting: 
 

Council Chambers 

April 21 Monday All Day Patriots Day Holiday N/A 

April 22 Tuesday 5:30pm & 7:00pm Council Budget Workshop #6: 
1. Review of FY15 Municipal Budget 
2. City Manager FY15 Budget Presented (per Charter) 

 
Council Meeting: 

1. 2
nd

 Bond Reading 
 

Council Chambers 

May 5 Monday 5:30pm & 7:00pm Council Budget Workshop #7:   
1. Review of FY15 Municipal Budget 

 
Council Meeting: 

1. Municipal Budget Public Hearing 
2. Adoption of the CDBG Budget  

 

Council Chambers 

May 7 Wednesday 5:30pm School Committee Workshop: 
 

Council Chambers 

May 19 Monday 5:30pm & 7:00pm Council Workshop: 
 
Council Meeting: 

1. Adoption of FY15 Municipal Budget 
 

Council Chambers 

May 21 Wednesday 7:00pm Regular School Committee Meeting: 
 

Council Chambers  

May 26 Monday All Day Memorial Day Holiday N/A 



City  o f  Auburn  
    

 

Page 5 of 5 

Updated:  1-29-14 

 

June 2 Monday 5:30pm & 7:00pm Council Workshop: 
 
Council Meeting: 
 

Council Chambers 

June 4 Wednesday 6:00pm Recognition School Committee Workshop: 
 

Council Chambers 

June 10 Tuesday All Day 
School Budget Validation Referendum 

TENTATIVE DATE 

Auburn 

June 11 Wednesday 5:30pm TENTATIVE School Committee Budget Workshop 
          (Response to the Referendum Vote) 

Council Chambers 

June 16 Monday 5:30pm & 7:00pm Council Workshop:  
 
Council Meeting: 
 

Council Chambers 

June 18 Wednesday 7:00pm Regular School Committee Meeting 
 

Council Chambers  

June 30 Monday TBA TENTATIVE: Joint Council Meeting w/ Lewiston Lewiston Council Chambers  

 



City of Auburn, Maine 
___________________________      ______ 

Office of the City Manager 
 

 

 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 

 

 

 

TO:   Mayor and City Council  

FROM: Clinton Deschene, City Manager 

RE:   FY2015 Budget Information 

DATE: February 3, 2014 

 

In order to further the collective goal of transparency while adhering to the charter, the FY15 

budget presentation will include two additions; an introductory program-based budget format for 

Council’s consideration, allotted time for citizen participation after each budget discussion and a  

coordinated budget schedule with the School Department.    

 

The City is actively seeking citizen participation in the FY2015 budget discussion.  After each 

budget presentation, a public session will be held to give citizens the opportunity to: 

 Comment  

 Ask questions 

 Provide feedback 

 

In order to conduct efficient and informative sessions, the City Manager requests that public 

comment be limited to no more than 30 minutes total and comments are specific to City 

departments that are on the workshop agenda for that evening.  This will ensure that everyone 

has a chance to speak and that appropriate staff will be present to field any questions or 

comments. 

 

Depending on the level of participation, residents will be provided additional time during the 

workshop at the discretion of the City Manager and in cooperation with the Mayor acting as 

parliamentarian. 

 

After the new public process to review the draft budget, the City Manager will present his 

recommended budget as required by charter.  The City Council will then deliberate on this 

budget and at the conclusion; the Council will review a final budget for public hearing, as 

required by charter.  These processes will occur in April and into May with an adopted Council 

budget on May 19
th

 and a school validation vote on June 10
th

. 

 



City of Auburn, Maine 
___________________________      ______ 

Office of the City Manager 
 

 

 

Page 2 of 2 

 

In an attempt to increase Auburn’s conformity with the Charter, the City is providing a program-

based budget template to coincide with the budget that Council has received in the past.  The 

intent of this new format is to provide a better overall understanding of costs, trigger meaningful 

budget dialogue, and produce performance measures and related goals.  If this format is well-

received, the City Manager intends to continue to evolve toward a full programmatic budget in 

approximately 5 years.   

 

As done in the past, the City will continue to provide the following items: 

 Organizational Chart 

 5 Year Budget History (Chart) 

 Budget Summary Spreadsheet 

 Current breakdown of budget 

 

 

In order to fully support the goal of program-based budgets, the following items will be 

provided: 

 Departmental program list 

 Assigned goals and objectives 

 Budget drivers and changes 

 Specific performance measures 

 Workload (when appropriate) 

 

The proposed budgets will use the actual amount of revenue sharing from FY 2014.  Should the 

State change Revenue Sharing before or after the completion of the budget, the City will address 

and review this change as a supplemental process or make the appropriate reductions as defined 

in Section 8.7 of the City Charter. 

 

As municipalities face budget difficulties, it is important that Auburn adheres to the Charter and 

strives to a high level of transparency.  This must occur all while maintaining stability in the 

services that are already provided.  The announcement of these two budget-related initiatives 

helps to move Auburn forward while addressing a challenging economic climate. 



City Council 

Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject: Public Hearing on Solid Waste and Recycling Committee Recommendation 

 

Information: The public hearing will be held for residents to comment on the recent recommendation from the 

Solid Waste and Recycling Committee on the future of Auburn's Solid Waste and Recycling programs.  

 

 

Financial:       

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Public hearing only and action will occur during budget discussions. 

 

Previous Meetings and History: At the City Council Meeting On January 21, 2014 the Solid Waste and 

Recycling provided an update on their progress on reviewing the various options for Solid Waste and 

Recycling.  The committee provided a recommendation and data analysis that has been since posted to the 

City's website under the Public Services page.  

 

 

Attachments: Committee recommendation and supporting documents  

 

 

 

 

Council Meeting Date:  February 3, 2014  PUBLIC HEARING 

Author:   Denis D'Auteuil, Public Services Director 



To:  Auburn City Councilors  

From:  Mayor’s Committee on Solid Waste Management 

Subject:  Solid Waste and Recycling Recommendation for Upcoming Fiscal Year(s) 

Date:  January 15, 2014 

 

The members of the Mayor’s Committee on Solid Waste Management are pleased to present a 

recommendation to the City Council for the upcoming fiscal year(s) based on our analysis of the solid 

waste and recycling (SW&R) management options for Auburn.   We have been meeting weekly or semi-

weekly since October to assess the current and future management of SW&R for our city with a 

particular eye towards the most economically feasible and citizen based solution to our SW&R 

collection.  Our research has consisted of extensive information gathering from MMWAC, Auburn Public 

Works, other Maine cities’ public works, and SW&R articles.  We have also received and reviewed 2 full 

SW&R private contractor proposals (Pine Tree Waste and Waste Zero) and 1 letter of interest (Almighty 

Waste).  This report will provide you first with the recommendation, followed by the process by which 

we came to this decision. 

Recommendation 

The committee’s recommendation to the City Council is to negotiate a combined SW&R contract with 

Pine Tree Waste that will be for an automated, weekly pick-up system of curbside solid waste and single 

stream recycling.  (An automated system uses specialized trucks to mechanically pick-up a particular 

type of bin.)  The collection contract should include the current residences and ten Auburn school 

facilities.  Adding the schools to the current city SW&R collection system will eliminate current costs to 

the schools, and will only minimally increase costs to the Pine Tree Waste proposal since the school 

facilities are located on current collection routes and their tonnage is small in comparison to the 

residences as a whole.  Each residential unit will be supplied one recycling bin and one solid waste bin, 

each large enough to meet an average household’s weekly SW&R needs.  The SW&R management 

system we are recommending to you has several advantages:  (1) Other towns using this automated, 

curbside SW&R system have increased their recycling rate to 25-35% within a matter of months to a 

couple of years.  [Putting it into perspective, Auburn’s current recycling rate is only 8.5%]   (2) With the 

increase in recycling, the SW tonnage decreases leading to a reduction in disposal costs for the city.  (3)  

The automated system eliminates the need for a person to handle the recycling and solid waste bins 

reducing the chances for work-related injuries.  (4) Contracting with a private contractor for SW&R 

collection is less expensive than continuing with the current city recycling collection program coupled 

with a private SW contractor.  

The key ingredients to any successful SW&R management system are an easy, efficient system for the 

citizens and effective, continuous public education.  The committee believes the recommended SW&R 

system is user friendly by utilizing single stream recycling and providing each residential unit with 



uniform recycling and trash bins. Single stream recycling allows more types of materials to be collected 

and all of them to be thrown into one recycling bin.  There is no longer a need to sort the recycled 

materials.  In addition, supplying each residence with one solid waste bin eliminates the problems 

presently associated with leaking and torn garbage bags on the sidewalks/streets.  If an additional 

recycling or solid waste bin is requested, we recommend that: (1) the city supply the extra recycling bin 

at cost with no additional fee charged for utilizing it, and (2) the city supply the additional solid waste 

bin at cost and charge a set monthly fee to cover the extra solid waste disposal costs.  This monthly fee 

could be collected at the same time as the property tax.  This fee would incentivize recycling materials in 

lieu of throwing them away resulting in lower SW disposal costs.  As is presently the case, all citizens will 

continue to have the option of taking any trash to MMWAC for free.  The second ingredient for a 

successful SW&R management system is public education.  The committee recognizes that a very robust 

educational campaign is necessary to increase citizen understanding and participation in recycling, as 

well as any new SW&R system.  The committee members are prepared to work with the City and the 

SW&R contractor on developing educational materials and presentations for public distribution.  The 

long term success of any SW&R system will rely on City personnel maintaining an effective educational 

program throughout the years.  Engaging our schools in the new SW&R system will also have the 

advantage of the children learning about the importance of proper trash and recycling separation and 

bringing that message home to their families.  

Process and Analysis 

 In determining the best SW&R management practice for Auburn, we developed 4 different scenarios for 

an economic analysis.  All of the scenarios assume single stream, curbside collection of recyclables and a 

2.5% annual increase in cost. (The 2.5% increase was the percentage proposed by Pine Tree Waste and 

is used for illustrative purposes.) 

Scenario 1: BAU bi-weekly [Business As Usual with bi-weekly recycling collection] 

For this SW&R option, the city retains the curbside bi-weekly recycling collection while a private 

contractor collects the solid waste.  The Public Works Director Denis D’Auteuil, a member of our 

committee, indicated that for this option to be operationally feasible there would have to be investment 

in at least one new recycling truck and potentially additional labor costs.  The recycling rate is assumed 

to remain at the current level of 8.5%. 

Scenario 2:  BAU weekly [Business As Usual with weekly recycling collection] 

This SW&R option is identical to the BAU bi-weekly scenario except for increasing the frequency of 

recycling collection to weekly. This increase in frequency would necessitate the purchase of an 

additional recycling truck and hiring more personnel over and beyond that required for a bi-weekly 

collection.  The recycling rate is assumed to double to 16%. 

Scenario 3 Stop Gap [2-year recycling contract then combined automated SW&R collection] 



This Stop Gap scenario was developed to address the need for a separate recycling contract over the 

next 2 years while the current solid waste contract with Pine Tree Waste is operational.  Costing for this 

SW&R option assumes a private contract for weekly recycling collection of $225,000/year, comparable 

to Lewiston, and an increase in the recycling rate to 16%. The 2-year private recycling contract would be 

for weekly curbside collection with bins and handling comparable to our current program.  After the 

second year, a combined SW&R automated collection contract would be negotiated (competitively bid) 

for the remaining 8 years.  We assumed a 10% reduction in costs below the currently proposed 10-year 

plan from Pine Tree Waste for these 8 years. This assumption is based upon the ability to openly bid the 

waste collection combined with the recycling collection once the current waste collection contract has 

expired.   In this scenario, the recycling rate after year 2 would increase to 25% with the combined 

automated SW&R collection and then increase 5% each subsequent year until a recycling rate of 35% is 

attained.  

Scenario 4: SW&R auto [10 year combined SW&R collection] 

This SW&R auto option reflects the current proposal from Pine Tree Waste for a 10-year combined 

SW&R automated collection program.  Pine Tree’s costs include purchasing 3 new automated, dual 

compartment, trash and recycling trucks, providing 2 uniquely tagged bins to each residence, automated 

weekly collection, and tonnage data by residence. The recycling rate over 10 years is identical to 

Scenario 3. 

Additional SW&R collection options were discussed, in particular Pay As You Throw (PAYT) and Drop Off 

Recycling in Dumpsters.  Pay As You Throw is a term used to describe a system that charges for the bags 

used to dispose of waste.  Towns that utilize PAYT systems report some of the highest recycling rates.  

One contractor, Waste Zero, provided a proposal for the PAYT scenario.   After careful discussion of the 

PAYT proposal, it was eliminated from further consideration because of perceived citizen objection to 

paying a fee for their SW collection.  The Drop Off Recycling in Dumpsters scenario was also removed 

from consideration.  This approach relies on placing special dumpsters in public locations and allows 

citizens to transport their own recycling materials to the dumpster.  The municipal cost is only periodic 

collection of material at the dumpster.  This option was eliminated after we determined that towns who 

had tried this alternative had experienced multiple problems including dumping, vandalism, and 

unsanitary conditions.  In addition, the recycling rate for this option was very low.  

Improving Auburn’s 8.5% recycling rate will serve to reduce the budgetary impact that will result from 

the increased MMWAC tipping fees for SW in the coming years.     Although MMWAC was not able to 

provide us a specific tipping fee/ton for the next fiscal year, the MMWAC Director and Councilor LeRoy 

Walker indicated that an increase from $29/ton will occur, and our committee believes the tipping fee 

will likely reach the market rate within 3 years to $55/ton.   Therefore to lessen this SW disposal cost 

increase, Auburn should strive to reduce its SW tonnage through recycling and consumer education.  

The cost saving achieved through recycling is actually cost avoidance.  As citizens recycle more materials, 

with a disposal recycling fee of $0 per ton, there is a corresponding reduction in SW tonnage and 

avoidance of its associated disposal costs.   As is common in other Maine cities, a recycling rate of 25% 



to 45% is attainable within a short period of time with an improved recycling management system and 

continuous public education. 

We developed an Excel workbook with spreadsheets analyzing current and future costs over 10 years for 

each of the 4 scenarios.    A ten year time frame was chosen for this analysis because: (1) we felt that 

taking a long range view of our SW&R management costs was prudent because of the increase in SW 

tipping fees at MMWAC and (2) Pine Tree Waste’s proposal was for 10 years.  The assumptions we made 

in our cost analysis were based on: 

 Experience from other cities in terms of recycling rates for various collection options 

  The Pine Tree Waste proposal for annual cost increases (2.5%) 

  Information received from MMWAC regarding disposal tipping fees 

  Auburn Public Works 

The results of the economic analysis of the 4 SW&R scenarios are presented in the following graph and 

table.   

.  

 

BAU bi-weekly $9,783,468 

BAU weekly $10,318,097 

Stop Gap $7,991,144 

SW&R auto $8,787,921 

 

$0 

$2,000,000 

$4,000,000 

$6,000,000 

$8,000,000 

$10,000,000 

$12,000,000 

BAU bi-weekly BAU weekly Stop Gap SW&R auto 

Projected Total Cost for SW&R Over 10 Years 

Total Cost 



As is evident, continuing with the current Business As Usual SW&R management system is the most 

expensive option and has been very difficult for the Public Works Department to maintain.  The current 

recycling system has lost favor with the citizens of Auburn as is demonstrated by the very low recycling 

rate and high SW tonnage per person. This combination of factors leads to increasing SW&R expenses 

for taxpayers.   

The benefit of moving to an automated, combined SW&R collection system can be seen in the 2 lowest 

cost scenarios.  The reduction in expenses is directly tied to increased cost avoidance through higher 

recycling rates and reduced SW tonnage, as is evident in the following table. 

 

Scenario Collection Disposal Avoidance 

BAU bi-weekly $6,129,729 $4,001,715 -$347,975 

BAU weekly $7,360,308 $3,653,740 -$695,950 

Stop Gap $6,306,167 $3,017,334 -$1,332,357 

SW&R auto $7,102,944 $3,017,334 -$1,332,357 

 

The committee has recommended the SW&R auto scenario over the Stop Gap scenario for several 

reasons.  The cost difference between the Stop Gap and the SW&R auto scenario, $ 796,777, is based on 

an assumption that a 10% reduction in costs from the current proposal from Pine Tree Waste can be 

attained for years 3-10 in the Stop Gap scenario.  Whether this assumption is valid will not be tested for 

another 2 years.  Rather than select the Stop Gap scenario based on this assumption, the committee 

recommends that the City negotiate with Pine Tree Waste to reduce its current proposal (SW&R auto) to 

meet or exceed the Stop Gap scenario.  If successful this path would lead to reduced recycling collection 

costs over the next 2 years compared to the Stop Gap scenario and expedite the city’s move to a 

combined automatic SW&R system with all its advantages.   Additionally by converting the city’s 

collections over to a two bin system, Auburn will be better positioned towards the future direction of 

the solid waste collection industry.   Indications lead the committee to believe that this industry is 

gearing itself towards a wet waste, dry waste collection process and the two bin automated system 

better prepares Auburn for tha transition. 

Under the automated SW&R collection system proposal, the committee expects that the council might 

hear concerns that a single trash container is not adequate for certain homeowners.  These concerns 

can be addressed in a few ways: 

1. Citizens could be directed to MMWAC where they may drop any excess waste into a dumpster 

at no charge. 

2. The City could provide a second waste bin for such residents at no charge. 

3. The City could provide a second waste bin for such residents at cost. 

4. The City could provide a second waste bin for such residents at cost, and also add a monthly 

cost to reflect the increased disposal costs associated with the extra solid waste. 



5. The City could encourage greater recycling by offering to provide a second recycling bin for free 

to encourage these residents to reduce their waste through greater recycling.  

After careful discussion of these options, the committee members agreed to recommend option 4 with 

the understanding that citizens will still be able to take any excess waste to MMWAC for no additional 

charge.  We recommended this option because it reduces costs to the city and places the onus on the 

residents for controlling their amount of solid waste for curbside pickup. 

Clearly any of these scenarios increases the annual cost for the city’s SW&R budget.  There is no way to 

retain the current SW&R system at the present cost in the coming year(s) because of the absence of any 

working recycling trucks and the increase in tipping fees at MMWAC.  A cost increase for SW&R is 

therefore inevitable for Auburn unless the city decides to eliminate all recycling (with its cost avoidance 

savings) and charge for solid waste disposal fees (based on increased MMWAC tipping fees).   If this 

were the decision by the City Council, then this committee would recommend reconsidering the Pay As 

You Throw (PAYT) proposal from Waste Zero.   The PAYT approach would charge each consumer a cost 

that is in line with the amount of waste they produce.  PAYT has resulted in the reduction of disposal 

fees of up to 50%.  However, PAYT is commonly coupled with a recycling collection system as a way for 

the citizens to reduce their SW costs.  Regardless of the SW&R management system selected, other than 

PAYT, we recommend that the council consider allocating some of the money that will become available 

when the MMWAC bond payments end in the fall of 2014 to this budget item. 

 

 

 

 

 

  



Total Waste & Recycle 

Collection Costs

Total Waste & 

Recycle (tons)

Tipping 

Fee's Percent Waste Est Waste tons

Year 1 634,000.00$                        8446 $35.00 84% 7094.64

Year 2 649,850.00$                        8446 $40.00 84% 7094.64

Year 3 666,096.25$                        8446 $55.00 75% 6334.50

Year 4 682,748.66$                        8446 $55.00 70% 5912.20

Year 5 699,817.37$                        8446 $55.00 65% 5489.90

Year 6 717,312.81$                        8446 $55.00 65% 5489.90

Year 7 735,245.63$                        8446 $55.00 65% 5489.90

Year 8 753,626.77$                        8446 $55.00 65% 5489.90

Year 9 772,467.44$                        8446 $55.00 65% 5489.90

Year 10 791,779.12$                        8446 $55.00 65% 5489.90

7,102,944.04$                     

Additional trash bins can be available for an additional fee. 

Additional recycle bin can be available at no cost.

Additional wast not in the bin can be dropped off at MMWAC fo rno additional fee.

Waste Disposal Costs



Waste Disposal 

Cost

Est. 

Recycling 

Rate

Est. 

Recycle 

tons

Tipping 

Fee's Avoidance 

$248,312.40 16% 1351.36 $35.00 $47,297.60

$283,785.60 16% 1351.36 $40.00 $54,054.40

$348,397.50 25% 2111.5 $55.00 $116,132.50

$325,171.00 30% 2533.8 $55.00 $139,359.00

$301,944.50 35% 2956.1 $55.00 $162,585.50

$301,944.50 35% 2956.1 $55.00 $162,585.50

$301,944.50 35% 2956.1 $55.00 $162,585.50

$301,944.50 35% 2956.1 $55.00 $162,585.50

$301,944.50 35% 2956.1 $55.00 $162,585.50

$301,944.50 35% 2956.1 $55.00 $162,585.50

Waste Disposal Costs Recycling Avoidance (Savings)



Total Waste and 

Recycle collections 

and disposal costs

$835,014.80

$879,581.20

$898,361.25

$868,560.66

$839,176.37

$856,671.81

$874,604.63

$892,985.77

$911,826.44

$931,138.12

$8,787,921.04



 

 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

 

 

        

 
Press Release for Immediate Distribution 

 

 
 
Date:  January 22, 2014 

 
Contact:  

Auburn Public Services  
296 Gracelawn Road 
Auburn, Maine 04210  
Phone: (207) 333-6670  
Email: publicworksworkorders@auburnmaine.gov 

 
       

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING:  SOLID WASTE AND RECYCLING  
 
AUBURN, ME. – The Auburn City Council will hold a public hearing on Monday February 3, 2014 
at 7:00pm in the City Council Chambers located at 60 Court Street.  The Public Hearing is regarding 
Auburn’s Solid Waste and Recycling program options and the recent recommendation to pursue an 
Automated Solid Waste and Recycling program. 
 
The recommendation and options reviewed by the committee are available on the City of Auburn 
website www.auburnmaine.gov on the Public Services page. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

### 

 

mailto:publicworksworkorders@auburnmaine.gov
http://www.auburnmaine.gov/


City Council 

Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject: Naming the ball field at Pettengill Park. Public Hearing. 

 

Information:  

A nomination was received to name the ball field at Pettengill Park in April of 2013. This was discussed at a 

workshop on May 20, 2013. The City has a process for naming City property and the nominations process 

for naming of the Pettengill baseball field began December 5, 2013 and ended on January 6, 2014. We 

received 7 nominations (attached). Applications were forwarded to Council via email to review on January 

7, 2014. A public hearing notice printed in the Sun Journal on January 27, 2014. A public hearing will be 

held on February 3, 2014 to be followed by Council action to name the field. 

 

 

Financial: N/A 

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Public hearing and action. 

 

Previous Meetings and History: May 20, 2013 workshop 

 

Attachments:  

 Applications 

 Policy 

 Public notice 

 Order 11-02032014 

Council Meeting Date:  February 3, 2014 Order  11-02032014 

Author:   Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk 













































CITY OF AUBURN 

PUBLIC NOTICE 

 
 

A public hearing will be held on Monday, February 3, 2014, at 7:00 p.m. or as 

soon as possible thereafter, in the Council Chambers of Auburn Hall, 60 Court 

Street, to review nominations that have been submitted to name the ball field at 

Pettengill Park. The public is invited to attend and comment on the naming of this 

ball field. 

        

 

 

 
 



City of Auburn, Maine 
“Maine’s City of Opportunity” 

___________________________      ______ 
Public Services Department 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TO:   Clint Deschene, City Manager   

Denis D’Auteuil, Public Services Director 

FROM:  Ravi Sharma, Recreation Operations Manager 

DATE:  12/2/13 

SUBJECT:  Field Naming 

 

 

The following memo is intended to outline the process for naming of the Pettengill baseball field.  

 

Nominations will be accepted for naming of the Pettengill baseball field for a 30 day window to begin 

on December 3, 2013 and end on January 3, 2014. Nomination application forms can be obtained at the 

City Clerk’s office. Nominations must be submitted to the City Clerk using the nomination application 

form during this 30 day period of time. The City Clerk will compile and organize all nominations. 

 

Staff will solicit nominations through a press release to the media, notification on the city website and 

through an email alert. After the 30 day nomination period has expired, the City Clerk will forward 

nomination applications to the City Council at the January 21, 2014 for a public hearing. Council can 

then consider action at the next regularly scheduled Council meeting. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  David Young, At Large 

Adam Lee, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 

 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDER 11-02032014 

 
ORDERED, that the City Council hereby agrees the Ball Field at Pettengill Park is hereby named; 

 

 

Option A – Ted Ricker Memorial Field 

Option B – Harry “Bud” Woodard Field 

Option C – Henry “Hank” Gagnon Field 

Option D – Sgt. George Deletetsky Field 

Option E - Norman Davis Field 

Option F – Roland Lachance Memorial Field 

Option G – Walker Field  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



City Council 

Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject: Proposal to repeal the second sentence of an Ordinance (Chapter 2, Article VI, Division 2 Section 2-

514) 

 

Information:  We are proposing to repeal the second sentence of Chapter 2, Article VI, Division 2 (under 

Capital Improvement Program) as it conflicts with Section 8.10 (Action on Capital Program) in our City 

Charter. Please see attached. 

  
  
Financial: N/A 

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Recommend passage (first reading).  

 

Previous Meetings and History: Discussed at the 1/21/2014 Council Workshop 

 

Attachments:  

Capital Program - Charter Sec. 8.10 

Capital Program Ordinance Sec 2-514 

Ordinance 01-02032014 

Council Meeting Date:  February 3, 2014 Ordinance  01-02032014 

Author:   Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk 



Sec. 8.10. Action on capital program. 

A. Notice and hearing. The city council and school committee shall publish the general summary of the 
capital program and a notice stating:  

1. The times and places where copies of the capital program are available for inspection by the 
public; and  

2. The time and place, not less than two weeks after such publication, for joint public hearing(s) on 
the capital program.  

B. Adoption. The city council by resolution shall adopt the capital program with or without amendment 
after the public hearing and on or before the last day of the last month of the current fiscal year.  

 



Sec. 2-514. Public notice and hearing. 

The council shall publish its capital improvements program on its website and make it available for 
inspection in the office of the city clerk. Notice of public hearing on the capital improvements program 
shall be given not less than seven nor more than 15 calendar days prior to the date of hearing.  

 



Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  David Young, At Large 

Adam R. Lee, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 

 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

           

ORDINANCE  01-02032014 

 
ORDERED, that the Code of Ordinances (Chapter 2, Article VI, Division 2 Section 2-514) hereby be amended 

as follows; 

 

Sec. 2-514. Public notice and hearing. 

The council shall publish its capital improvements program on its website and make it available for inspection in the 
office of the city clerk. Notice of public hearing on the capital improvements program shall be given not less than seven 
nor more than 15 calendar days prior to the date of hearing. 

 

 

 

 

 



City Council 

Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject: Resolution in Support of a Regional Rail Trail Project. 

 

Information:  

Growing interest in healthy communities and a recognition that recreational trails have social and economic 

benefits have led to planning efforts to create a network of trails that connect neighborhoods, towns and regions.  

An opportunity exists to create such a trail system utilzing abandoned rail road beds between Lewiston, Lisbon 

and Brunswick.  This trail is endorsed in both the Androscoggin River Greenway Plan (by Androscoggin Land 

Trust) and the Bike and Pedestrian Plan (by the Androscoggin Transportation Resource Center).   

 

This resolution of support will help in implementing this trail plan as funding opportunities arise and garner 

support for similar plan in Auburn 

 

 

Financial: None at this time. 

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Approval of Resolution. 
 

 

Previous Meetings and History: This project has been discussed by the City Council in their support or adoption 

of the Androscoggin River Greenway Plan and the ATRC Bike and Pedestrian plan.  

 

 

Attachments:  

1. Project description from Androscoggin River Greenway Plan. (pg. 3-25, 3-26) 

2. Implementation Recommendation for trail from the Bike/Ped Plan. (pg. 31,32) 

3. Artcle on the Benefits of Greenway, November 10, 2013, Sun Journal. 

4. Resolve 01-02032014 

Council Meeting Date:  February 3, 2014 Resolve 01-02032014 

Author:   Douglas M. Greene, AICP, RLA 

















Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  David Young, At Large 

Adam R. Lee, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

RESOLVE 01-02032014 

 
 

WHEREAS, The City of Auburn, City Council in the County of Androscoggin, and State of Maine appointed 

municipal staff and volunteer members of the public have worked with a Regional Rail to Trail Committee from 

Lewiston and Auburn to produce a plan to construct a multi-use trail from Lisbon to Lewiston on the abandoned 

rail line. 

 

AND WHEREAS, it is the intent of the City of Auburn, City Council to work with Regional Rail to Trail 

Committee on the proposed plans to ensure that the future multi-use trail is open to the public for recreational 

and wellness activity. 

 

AND WHEREAS, the City of Auburn , City Council supports the proposed Rail to Trail as an economic 

development opportunity that will benefit all organizations and businesses within the Androscoggin County 

region. 

 

AND WHEREAS, the City of Auburn , City Council also recognizes that the Rail to Trail is supported in the  

Bridging the Gap, ATRC 2013 Regional Bicycle/Pedestrian  Plan;  “A number of opportunities exist for multi-

use paths in Lewiston, Auburn, Sabattus and Lisbon.  Ideally these paths can be constructed on independent 

right- of- ways such as abandoned railway beds” 

 

AND WHEREAS, the City of Auburn, City Council, supports the removal of the rail so construction of the new 

trail will be done and also allow the improvement of the rail bed. 

 

AND WHEREAS, the City of Auburn, City Council recognizes that the State of Maine may exercise its right to 

reconstruct the rail at any time that it deems necessary for regional economic development improvements.  

 

BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED that the City of Auburn, City Council supports the Regional Rail to Trail 

efforts as it makes sense financially and functionally to support in earnest:  

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, The City of Auburn supports any legislative effort that will result in the 

development and completion of a multi-use trail for recreational and wellness activities.  The effect of the 

completion of this trail will allow all citizens of the State of Maine and its visitors to have access to all that 

Maine has to offer in terms of recreation and area to encourage healthy life styles.  It will also optimize and 

develop regional cooperation that would enhance economic development opportunities for the Androscoggin 

County region.  



City Council 

Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     XBudget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject: Revenue Sharing Resolve 

 

Information: See attached Resolve 

 

 

Financial:  

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Recommend passage of the Resolve 

 

Previous Meetings and History: N/A 

 

Attachments: Resolve: Expressing the opposition of the City Council of the City of Auburn to proposals to 

shift the burden of funding state government to the property tax and property tax payer 

Council Meeting Date:  February 3, 2014 Resolve  02-02032014 

Author:   Clint Deschene, City Manager 



 
 
 

Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three David Young, At Large 

Adam R. Lee, Ward Four 

 
Jonathan P. LaBonte, 

Mayor 
 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 

RESOLVE 02-02032014 
 

 

Expressing the Opposition of the City Council of the City of Auburn to Proposals to Shift the Burden off 

Funding State Government to the Property Tax and Property Tax Payer. 

 
WHEREAS, the State Administration’s second year of the biennium budget that will shift the funding state 

government to the property tax by reducing the longstanding revenue sharing program by $60,000,000 for 

FY15; and 

 
WHEREAS, the proposal to reduce municipal revenue sharing again for FY15 would result in a $1,139,927 

revenue loss to the City of Auburn and, representing 3.7% of the City’s general fund operating budget and 

$0.57 on the property tax rate after losing $750,530 thousand in FY14 a total loss of $1,890,457 in 2 years; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, if the municipal revenue sharing were fully funded the City of Auburn would receive 

$3,360,317 annually; and 

 
WHEREAS, the proposal to reduce municipal revenue sharing goes against the state statute that created State-

municipal revenue sharing to stabilize the municipal property tax burden and to aid in financing municipal 

services; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Auburn generates sales taxes for the State of Maine of over $40 million dollars per 

year; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Auburn Police Department issued $128,588 in traffic citations during FY13, which all 

fine revenue is directed to the State’s general fund; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Auburn Tax Collector’s and City Clerk’s Departments collected for the State over 

$783,000 for vehicle registration fees and other State license fees; and 

 
WHEREAS, the revenue sharing program no longer recognizes the cost to service center communities; and 

 
WHEREAS, further staffing and expenditure reductions of the magnitude to remove or mitigate these losses, 

without financial support to implement shared service or consolidation efforts, would undermine the City’s 

ability to provide local public services; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF AUBURN, that 

the City Council hereby expresses its strong opposition to the recently proposed state reduction of  Municipal 

Revenue Sharing, and 

 

 



 

 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF AUBURN, that 

the City Council proposes that the municipal revenue sharing be reinstated to what it should be according to the 

law, before any expansion of any unnecessary State programs; and 

 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF AUBURN, that 

the City Council hereby expresses its strong opposition to the State not meeting it’s legal obligation to the 

municipality; and 

 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF AUBURN, that 

the City Council proposes that the State of Maine recalibrate the Revenue Sharing Program to account for the 

increased costs associated with being a Service Center Community; 

 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Clerk is directed to provide copies of this RESOLVE to the 

members of the Legislature representing the City of Auburn, members of the Appropriations and Taxation 

Committees, the Governor, the Speaker of the House, the President of the Senate and the Legislative leadership. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 2 of 2 



City Council 

Agenda Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

*Agenda items are not limited to these categories. 

 

 

  

 
 

Item(s) checked below represent the subject matter related to this workshop item.   

 
Comprehensive Plan     Work Plan     Budget     Ordinance/Charter     Other Business*     Council Goals**                   

 

**If Council Goals please specify type:      Safety       Economic Development       Citizen Engagement 

 

 

Subject: Reinstate the funding ($2,205 from the Fund Balance) to support five polling places instead of one for 

the June 10, 2014 Election. 

 

Information: During budget discussions for FY14, Council voted to approve reducing the number of polling 

places for the June 2014 Election, reducing the budget by $2,205.  

 

Financial: $2,205 from the Fund Balance 

 

Action Requested at this Meeting: Recommend passage 

 

Previous Meetings and History: Discussion at the 1/22/2014 Joint Workshop (School Committee & Council). 

 

Attachments:  

 Section of the June 24, 2013 minutes pertaining to this item 

 Order 12-02032014 

Council Meeting Date:  February 3, 2014 Order  12-02032014 

Author:   Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk 







Tizz E. H. Crowley, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 

Robert Hayes, Ward Two  Belinda Gerry, At Large 

Mary Lafontaine, Ward Three  David Young, At Large 

Adam Lee, Ward Four 

 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 

 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ORDER 12-02032014 

 
ORDERED, that City Council hereby authorizes the City Manager to reinstate funding ($2,205 to be taken from 

the Fund Balance) to support five polling places instead of one for the June 10, 2014 Election. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



City Council 

Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

 

  Council Meeting Date: February 3, 2014  

 

   

 

Subject: Executive Session  

 

Information: Discussion regarding a personnel matter, pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(A)  

 

 
Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered in executive 

session.  Executive sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are required to be kept confidential 

until they become a matter of public discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor must make a motion in public.  The motion 

must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of the Council must vote to go into executive session.  An executive session is not required to be 

scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is known at the time that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The 

only topics which may be discussed in executive session are those that fall within one of the categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 

405(6).  Those applicable to municipal government are: 

 

A. Discussion or consideration of the employment, appointment, assignment, duties, promotion, demotion, compensation, evaluation, 

disciplining, resignation or dismissal of an individual or group of public officials, appointees or employees of the body or agency or the 

investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against a person or persons subject to the following conditions:  

(1) An executive session may be held only if public discussion could be reasonably expected to cause damage to the individual's 

reputation or the individual's right to privacy would be violated; 

(2) Any person charged or investigated must be permitted to be present at an executive session if that person so desires; 

(3) Any person charged or investigated may request in writing that the investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against that 

person be conducted in open session. A request, if made to the agency, must be honored; and  

(4) Any person bringing charges, complaints or allegations of misconduct against the individual under discussion must be permitted to be 

present. 

This paragraph does not apply to discussion of a budget or budget proposal;  

 

B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension or expulsion of a public school student or a student at a private school, the 

cost of whose education is paid from public funds, as long as:  

(1) The student and legal counsel and, if the student is a minor, the student's parents or legal guardians are permitted to be present at an 

executive session if the student, parents or guardians so desire;  

 

C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to real property 

or interests therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature disclosures of the information would 

prejudice the competitive or bargaining position of the body or agency;  

 

D. Discussion of labor contracts and proposals and meetings between a public agency and its negotiators. The parties must be named 

before the body or agency may go into executive session. Negotiations between the representatives of a public employer and public employees 

may be open to the public if both parties agree to conduct negotiations in open sessions;  

 

E. Consultations between a body or agency and its attorney concerning the legal rights and duties of the body or agency, pending or 

contemplated litigation, settlement offers and matters where the duties of the public body's or agency's counsel to the attorney's client pursuant 

to the code of professional responsibility clearly conflict with this subchapter or where premature general public knowledge would clearly place 

the State, municipality or other public agency or person at a substantial disadvantage;  

 

F. Discussions of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the general public 

to those records is prohibited by statute; 

 

G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or employment 

purposes; consultation between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that body or agency regarding the content 

of an examination; and review of examinations with the person examined; and  

 

H. Consultations between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 30-A, section 

4452, subsection 1, paragraph C in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when the consultation relates to that 

pending enforcement matter.  



City Council 

Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

 

  Council Meeting Date: February 3, 2014  

 

   

 

Subject: Executive Session  

 

Information: Discussion regarding a labor negotiations (MAP Patrol), pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(D)  

 

 
Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered in executive 

session.  Executive sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are required to be kept confidential 

until they become a matter of public discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor must make a motion in public.  The motion 

must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of the Council must vote to go into executive session.  An executive session is not required to be 

scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is known at the time that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The 

only topics which may be discussed in executive session are those that fall within one of the categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 

405(6).  Those applicable to municipal government are: 

 

A. Discussion or consideration of the employment, appointment, assignment, duties, promotion, demotion, compensation, evaluation, 

disciplining, resignation or dismissal of an individual or group of public officials, appointees or employees of the body or agency or the 

investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against a person or persons subject to the following conditions:  

(1) An executive session may be held only if public discussion could be reasonably expected to cause damage to the individual's 

reputation or the individual's right to privacy would be violated; 

(2) Any person charged or investigated must be permitted to be present at an executive session if that person so desires; 

(3) Any person charged or investigated may request in writing that the investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against that 

person be conducted in open session. A request, if made to the agency, must be honored; and  

(4) Any person bringing charges, complaints or allegations of misconduct against the individual under discussion must be permitted to be 

present. 

This paragraph does not apply to discussion of a budget or budget proposal;  

 

B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension or expulsion of a public school student or a student at a private school, the 

cost of whose education is paid from public funds, as long as:  

(1) The student and legal counsel and, if the student is a minor, the student's parents or legal guardians are permitted to be present at an 

executive session if the student, parents or guardians so desire;  

 

C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to real property 

or interests therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature disclosures of the information would 

prejudice the competitive or bargaining position of the body or agency;  

 

D. Discussion of labor contracts and proposals and meetings between a public agency and its negotiators. The parties must be named 

before the body or agency may go into executive session. Negotiations between the representatives of a public employer and public employees 

may be open to the public if both parties agree to conduct negotiations in open sessions;  

 

E. Consultations between a body or agency and its attorney concerning the legal rights and duties of the body or agency, pending or 

contemplated litigation, settlement offers and matters where the duties of the public body's or agency's counsel to the attorney's client pursuant 

to the code of professional responsibility clearly conflict with this subchapter or where premature general public knowledge would clearly place 

the State, municipality or other public agency or person at a substantial disadvantage;  

 

F. Discussions of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the general public 

to those records is prohibited by statute; 

 

G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or employment 

purposes; consultation between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that body or agency regarding the content 

of an examination; and review of examinations with the person examined; and  

 

H. Consultations between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 30-A, section 

4452, subsection 1, paragraph C in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when the consultation relates to that 

pending enforcement matter.  


	0  Agenda 02-03-2014
	1  Workshop Info Sheet Winter Ops update
	2  Workshop Info Sheet Goal Setting Session Update
	2a  2014 Council Goals and Staff Initiatives
	3  Minutes 1-21-2014
	5  Budget Schedule 1 29 14
	5a  CM_FY15_BudgetInfoMemo
	6  Agenda Info Sheet Solid waste PUBLIC HEARING Info Sheet 2 3 14
	6a  Solid Waste and Recycling Recommendation final for Council
	6b  Waste  Recycle Options Analysis Recommendation final
	6c  Solid Waste and Recycling press release 1 22 14
	7  Agenda Info Sheet Naming the Ball Field at Pettengill
	7a  Applications for Naming the Ball Field at Pettengill Park
	7b  policy for naming facilities
	7c  Public Notice - naming the ball field at Pettengill Park
	7d  Field Naming Memo - 12-2-13
	7e  Order 11-02032014 Naming the Ball Field at Pettengill Park
	8  Agenda Info Sheet Ordinance Repeal
	8a  Capital Program - Charter 8.10
	8b  Capital Program Ordinance Sec 2-514
	8c  Ordinance 01-02032014 Capital Program2
	9  Agenda Info Sheet Auburn Rail To Trail
	9a  Rail to Trail docs
	9b  Resolve 01-02032014 Rail to Trail
	10  Agenda Info Sheet Revenue Sharing
	10a  Resolve 02-02032014 Opposition to Revenue Sharing Reduction FY15
	11  Agenda Info Sheet Supplement funds for 5 polling places
	11A  MINUTES ONE POLLING PLACE
	11b  Order 12-02032014 supplement funding for 5 polling places
	12  Executive Session personnel matter
	13  Executive Session labor negotiations MAP Patrol

